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Targeted Assistance Grant (TAG) Program Request for Proposals
Questions and Answers

Available Funding

1.
Q What is the available funding?

A The following chart indicates the amount available for the first budget period,
broken down by county:

County Budget Period 1 
Allocation

Kings $151,335

New York $89,812

Queens $112,562

Albany $141,840

Erie $560,039

Monroe $284,471

Oneida $174,678

Onondaga $448,862

2.
Q The RFP states “For NYC, BRIA anticipates making at least four awards…of 

approximately $100,000”. Because the Office of Refugee Resettlement 
awarded states the FY 15 allocation, and the NYC allocation for the first budget 
period is $353,709, can an applicant ask for more or less than one quarter of 
the amount?
A Yes. A NYC applicant may request more or less than one quarter of the NYC 

allocation.  However, BRIA anticipates making at least four awards of 
approximately one quarter the NYC allocation.

3.
Q Will the budget period allocation be a different amount for each of the 5 years?

A ORR makes formula-based appropriations annually based on the most recent 
completed federal fiscal years’ arrivals data.  Therefore, the allocation may be 
different for each subsequent budget period.

4.
Q Does BRIA expect that the 63 month budget form will simply reflect the 1st 

year schedule (in other words, 5 times the number of each of the individual 
service points in the year one schedule) or may applicants propose a 63 month 
budget that is different?
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A BRIA anticipates that the 5-year awards made to each successful applicant will 
total the Budget Period 1 Allocation times 5, and expects the 63-month requests 
to total that amount.  Within that amount, applicants can propose to allocate the 
particular service point units however they choose.  The number of units 
allocated to each individual payment point for the 63-month budget does not 
have to equal 5 times what is proposed in the Budget Period 1 budget, however, 
the units allocated to Budget Period 1 cannot be more than what is allocated in 
the 63-month schedule.

5.
Q Can TAG funding be used to pay for training registration, transportation, tools,

uniforms or shoes/boots?
A Yes. However, contractors are not reimbursed for line-item expenses.  

Compensation is directly tied to the completion of deliverables/outcomes.

Training 1 and 2

1.
Q How is training completion defined?

A The RFP does not define completion. That is left  to applicants to define in their 
descriptions of proposed trainings.  For example, completion may be defined as 
the minimum number of instructional hours attended; or, passing a competency
test.  Please keep in mind however that Training 1 requires 60-120 instructional 
hours.  Training 2 requires 121 or more instructional hours.

2.
Q On page 5 of the RFP, it states, “on the job training, internships, and pre-

apprenticeships and Registered Apprenticeships”.  What is the difference 
between these various things? What is the difference between an 
apprenticeship and internship? How does the RFP define mentorship?

A Applicants define their training delivery strategies.

3.
Q Can training be done in-house by staff and/or volunteers?

A Yes.
4.

Q Who can provide the certificate of completion?  
A The entity that provides the training provides the certificate of completion.

5.
Q Is training curriculum required to be reviewed by BRIA?

A No, however, per page 6 of the RFP, training curricula must be linked to industry 
skill standards, certifications or licensing requirements. 

6.
Q If an applicant partners with an agency that provides a training that is partly 

subsidized through the partner’s state or federal grant, can the training be 
claimed under TAG? / The RFP does not stipulate that the contractor must 
subsidize costs of training. Will contractors be allowed to count trainings that 
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TAG enrolled clients participate in where the training is subsidized by other 
sources? 
A Yes.

7.
Q Are trainings offered through Dept. of Labor, Workforce Development and/or 

Adult Education programs/funding allowable? 
A Yes.  If your organization will subcontract or partner with other agencies to 

provide the trainings, their roles and responsibilities in the program must also be 
described in the project summary on the work plan overview screen.

8.
Q If an awardee contracts for 10 Training (1 and/or 2) completions, but 15 

participants complete the training, can the contractor claim the five Training 
outcomes in the subsequent budget period?
A Yes.

9.
Q On page 6 of the RFP, OTDA states that “Completion of a training program …is 

associated with a skill/credential recognized by employers within the industry 
or region.”  Does this mean that the training must have a broad or official 
recognition of the training program or just that an individual employer 
recognizes the validity of the training?
A While we are encouraging applicants to propose a higher level of training that will 

result in credentials such as licenses, certifications and/or other official 
recognitions of the skills obtained, it is acceptable that an individual employer 
recognizes the validity of the training in that the client has obtained the skills 
necessary to successfully perform the functions of the particular job.

10.
Q Are there any limitations to what is included in training hours? For instance, 

are hours that are part of the training orientation countable? If vocational 
English instruction is included in the training regimen, are those hours 
countable?  
A It is up to the applicant to describe what the instructional hours consist of and 

justify how and why the curricula is job-driven and will result in employment 
opportunities. Vocational ESL as a stand-alone training will not count as a 
training 1 or 2. However, if a training curriculum may include an ESL module or 
component to assist participants in learning critical industry terms as part of the 
larger training.

11.
Q RFP says trainings "are specifically defined in contractor's approved work 

plan..." Does that mean type (i.e. "construction") + number of hours per week 
& number of weeks or does it have to be broken down by exactly what will be 
taught per session /week, exact skills to be learned and tools used, etc.? What 
do you mean by "specifically defined"?
A As stated on page 33 of the RFP, applicants are instructed to describe the 

trainings their organization proposes by addressing the following:
i. Define the method of service delivery (Who, what, when, where, how) for 

each training. 
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ii. Examples of delivery strategies include: Vocational Classroom Training, On-
the-job Training, Skills Recertification, Mentorship, Apprenticeship and 
Internship.  

iii. Include the number of hours of each training.
iv. Include labor market statistics that support why each training is job-driven; 

how each training can meet current and future hiring needs.
v. Include current relationships with employers, employee associations and 

labor organizations, and current employment opportunities available through 
these relationships, upon participants’ successful completion of each training.

vi. Include your plan to engage other, specific employers, employee associations 
and labor organizations and their projected employment opportunities and 
continued support to participants upon successful completion of each 
training. 

vii. If your organization will subcontract or partner with other agencies to provide 
the trainings, their roles and responsibilities in the program must also be 
described.

Job Placement

1.
Q Can a contractor claim a Job Placement outcome for a job a client obtains on 

his/her own, after completing a Training and receiving employment preparation 
services?
A The contractor may claim the Training 1 or 2 and Employment Preparation 

outcome(s) but cannot claim a Job Placement.  A Job Placement may be claimed 
when it results from the contractor informing the participant of the interview 
scheduled by the contractor.

2.
Q Are there any prerequisites to claim a Job Placement?

A No.
3.

Q Does the job placement have to be in the exact industry of the training to 
qualify?
A No.  However, you may claim a Job Placement Bonus if the job placement 

resulted from the training through this program and this contract.
4.

Q What sort of proof is required to achieve the job placement bonus, to prove 
that the job placement was a result of the provided training? 
A On page 17 of the RFP, the documentation requirements for Job Placement

Bonus states that case note documentation must be included in the client case 
file signifying that the job placement resulted from the training.

Transitional Supports

1.
Q Can a contractor claim a transitional support for ESL services that are 

provided to facilitate training, whether vocational classroom training, on-the-
job training, mentorships or internships? 
A No. An ESL Transitional support is the referral or provision of ESL services that 

are separate from a training 1 or 2.  
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2.
Q What does the RFP mean when it lists “Referral” as a task under Transitional 

Supports? Does it just mean referral to outside agencies, for any of the 
Allowable Tasks?
A Yes. In the Deliverable/Outcomes and Tasks Screens, applicants will enter the 

referral to an Allowable Task in the Performance Measure Name field (i.e., 
Referral to child care services, Referral to domestic violence services).  You may 
enter (and define) as many referrals as needed.   

3.
Q You mentioned it was possible to add other Transitional Support payment 

points that are not listed in the RFP. Can you explain how we can enter that 
into the application and how much information you need for these additional 
payment points?
A

i. On the Objectives and Tasks screen, select the Transitional Support 
(continued) objective from the drop down and click GO

ii. Next to the allowable task #8, “Other services or activities that have been
approved by OTDA in writing” click View/Add under Performance Measures

i 

ii 

i 
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iii. In the Performance Measure Name field, enter your first performance 
measure (i.e. the transitional service you are proposing to submit for OTDA 
approval)

iv. In the Narrative field define in sufficient detail (who, what, when, where, how) 
the method of service delivery for providing the tasks to achieve the objective.
In other words, in the Narrative field, please describe the significance of the 
objective, the task(s) used to accomplish it and performance measures that 
will document that it has been accomplished.

v. SAVE
vi. If more than one performance measure is required to complete the task, click 

ADD and repeat steps iii through v. 

v vi 

iii 

iv 

6 
 



September 2015 
 

Applying in Grants Gateway

1.
Q The RFP says “4,000 characters” or “1,000 characters”; does that character 

count include spaces? It doesn’t seem possible that in the Work Plan Overview 
section, we can answer everything BRIA wants to know in the Project 
Summary. Can you please confirm that the 4,000 characters applies to that 
section?
A There is a 4,000 character limit for the Program Specific Questions section.  

There is 1,000 character limit for each Performance Measure in the 
Deliverables/Outcome and Tasks Screen.  There is a 50,000 character limit for 
the Project Summary where the Work Plan is entered. These limits include 
spaces. If you closely follow the instructions in the RFP as well as in Grants 
Gateway, these character limits will be sufficient. 

2.
Q In Transitional Supports, for “other tasks to be approved by OTDA in writing” –

can we use a separate Task dropdown field (with its own 1,000 character limit) 
for EACH task? Or do we have to list them all in one drop-down field with a 
1,000 character limit?
A There is 1,000 character limit for each Performance Measure narrative in the 

Deliverables/Outcome and Tasks Screen. The narrative in this section should be 
concise and limited to what is specified in the RFP. For instructions on how to 
complete these screens, and/or how to add additional performance measures
under a particular task, see page 34 of the RFP and also refer to the answer to 
Question 7 in the Transitional Support section of this document.

3.
Q Please clarify the rights of the Grantee, Grantee Signatory and Grantee System 

Administrator.
A In order to create and work on an application, you must log into Grants Gateway 

as a Grantee, Grantee Signatory or Grantee System Administrator. The link to 
log-in is on the top left of the Grants Gateway website.  Once logged-in, you must 
click on "Available Opportunities" and in the text box next to “Search by Grant 
Opportunity Name” type “NYS Response to Human Trafficking Program.” Click 
on the blue link. Scroll down and click on "Apply for Grant Opportunity."  Begin 
your application using the instructions both on the screens and in the RFP.

Applicants that are unable to see the “Apply for Opportunity” button are most 
likely not logged in at all or are logged in as a Delegated Administrator, a role 
that can’t apply for opportunities. For more information, please see the NYS 
Grants Gateway Vendor’s Quick Start Guide at 
http://grantsreform.ny.gov/sites/default/files/grantee_quick_start_guide.pdf.
Applicants having further questions may contact the helpdesk for technical 
assistance at 1-800-820-1890 or helpdesk@agatesoftware.com

The following table will provide a snapshot of which roles are allowed to Initiate, 
Complete, and Submit the Grant Application(s) in the Grants Gateway:
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Role
Create and 
Maintain 

user Roles
Initiate 

Application
Complete 

Application
Submit 

Application
Only view 

the 
Application

Delegated 
Admin   

Grantee  

Grantee 
Contract 
Signatory 
Grantee 
Payment 
Signatory 
Grantee 
System 
Administrato
r

Grantee 
View Only

Subcontractors and/or partners

1.
Q Are outside training providers considered subcontractors?

A Page 34 of the RFP states, “If your organization will subcontract or partner with 
other agencies to provide the trainings, their roles and responsibilities in the 
program must also be described”. It is up to the applicant whether the outside 
training provider will be the applicant’s subcontractor or partner.

2.
Q Is there a limit to how much of the grant award request is subcontracted?

A No. However, it is not our intent to have a prime contractor pass through to 
subcontractors.

Minority- and Women-Owned Business Enterprise (M/WBE)

1.
Q Is the 0% overall goal for MWBE participation on page 28 a typo?

A No, the 0% participation goal is correct for the 2016-2021 TAG procurement.
2.

Q In light of the 0% goal, are applicants required to submit Subcontractor and 
Supplier Identification Form and M/WEBE-EEO Policy Statement? For the 
"Subcontractor and Supplier Identification Form" (page 43), would you like us 
to leave column 5 blank? 
A Yes, those forms are required uploads.  The "Subcontractor and Supplier 

Identification Form" should be completed in accordance with your agency’s 
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proposal to subcontract with any subcontractor or supplier under the proposed 
contract, regardless of any MWBE goals or requirements.

3.
Q Under the current TAG 2011-16 contract, we are required to submit quarterly, 

both an EEO Workforce Utilization Plan and Contractor Quarterly Compliance 
Report (M/WBE form). Based on the new rules regarding M/WBE, will we no 
longer have to submit the Contractor Quarterly Compliance Report?
A The MWBE requirements in the new TAG procurement have no impact on the 

current TAG Program.  The current contracts remain unchanged and you should 
continue to operate as such.  
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